
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORlrXA 

SUMMONS 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

PLAMTLFF(S) 
V. 

MANTRA FILMS, INC., and, JOSEPH R. 

TO: THE ABOVE-NAMED DEFENDANT(S): 

CASE h'UMBER 

( M A  Nx) 

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to file with ttus court and serve upon plaintiffs artorney 
M A N  L. JOSEPHS , whose address is: 

PETER D. GISLER ASSIST ATTY GENERAL 
EUGENE M. THLROF, DIRECTOR 
MARK L. JOSEPHS 
133 1 PENNSYLVANIA, N.W., SUlTE 950 NORTH 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20004 

an answer to the Ki complaint amended compl~ant 13 counterda~m O cross-clam 
whch  IS herewith served upon you within 20 days after service of this Swmons upon you, escluslvc 
of the day of serv~ce If you fail to do so, judgement by default will be taken ap ins t  you for the re~lef 
demanded in rhe complaint. 

Dared: 
DEC 1 6  2003 

Clerk, U.S. Disiict  Cou 
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DEBRA W. YANG 
Unlted Staces Attorney 
LEON W. WEIDMAN 
Assistant Ynited States Attorney 
Chief, Civil Divislon 
VINCE FPGHAT 
Assistant United States Attorney 
California State Bar No. 183794 

Federal Building, Suite 7516 
300 North Los Angeles Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012 
Telephone: ( 2 1 3 )  8 9 4 - 2 4 0 0  
Facsimile: ( 2 1 3 )  8 9 4 - 7 8 1 9  

PETER D .  KEISLER 
Assistant Aztorney General 
Civil Division 
EUGENE M. THIROLF 
Director 
Office of Consumer Litigation 
I W K  L. JOSEPHS 
Trial Attorney 
United States Department of Justlce 

1331 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Suite 950 North 
Washington, D.C. 20004 
Telephone: ( 2 0 2 )  3 0 5 - 3 6 3 0  
Facsimile: ( 2 0 2 )  5 1 4 - 8 7 4 2  

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
3nited States of America 

I N  THE UNITED STATES DISTXICT COURT 

FOR THE CENTXAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

WESTERN DIVISION 

. . - 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, N o .  CV 

Plaintiff, 1 
) 

MANTRA FILMS, INC . , and, 
JOSEPH 3 ,  FRANCIS, 

Defendants 

) COMPLAINT FCR CIVIL PENALTIES, 
) P E W T E N T  I N J U N C T I O N ,  P3W 
1 OTHER RELIEF 

1 
1 



Plaintiff, the United States of America, acting upon 

notification and a u t h o r i z a t i o n  to the Attorney General by the 

Federal Trade Commission ("FTCN or "Commission"), for i t s  

zomplaint, alleges t h a t :  

1. plaintiff brings this action under Sections 5 ( a ) ,  

13(b), and l 6 ( a )  of the Federal  Trade Comrnissicn A c t  ("FTC A c t " ) ,  

15 U.S.C. S B  4 5  (a), 5 3  (b) , and 5 6  (a) ; Section 917 (c) of the 

Electronic F:ind Transfer Act ("EFTA") , 15 U.S.C. S 1 6 9 3 0  ( c )  ; and 

Sec t ion  ( a )  of the 3nordered Merchandise Statute, 3 9  S . S . C .  

§ 3 009 (a) , to secure a permanent injunction, consurer  redress, 

disgorgement, and other equitable re l i e f  from Defendants for 

engaging in acts or practices violating Section 5(a1 zf t h e  FTC 

A c t ,  15 U . S . C .  § 4 5 i a ) ;  Sectlon 907(a) of the EFTA, 15 U.S.C. 

§ l693e (a) ; Section 205.10 (b) of R~gulation E, 12 C.F.R. 

S 2 3 5 . 1 0  (b) , and Seczion 205.10 (b) of the Federai R e s e r ~ e  Board's 

Official Staff Cornme~tary to Regulation E, 12 C . F . R -  § 205.10ib), 

Supp. I; and Section (a) of the Unordered. Merchandise Statute, 33 

U.5.C. i3 3009(aI; and to recover monetary civil penalties 

pursuant to Section 5 (m) (1) ( B )  of t h e  FTC Act, 1 5  U .  S . C. 

6 45 (m) (1) (B) , from Defendants f o r  engaging in acts or practices 

previously determined by the Cor,mission to be u n f a i r  and 

deceptive and unlawful under Section 5 ( a )  of the FTC Act, 15 

U.S.C. S 4 5 ( a ) .  

JURISDICTION AND V E m  

2 .  Tnis Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant 

t o  1 5  U.S .C. S S  45  (a), 45 (m) (1) ( B )  , 53 (b) , and 56 (a) , and 23 

TJ.S.C.  85 1331, 1 3 3 7  [,a), 1345, and 1355. 
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3 .  Venue in this district is proper under 23 U.S.C, S f  

1391(b) and (c), and l 3 9 5 ( a ) ,  and 15 U . S . C .  § 53!b). 

DEFENDANTS 

4. Defendant Mantra Films, Inc., d/b/a M-Rn Video 

("Mantra"), is an Oklahoma corporation with its principal place 

3f business located within the Central District of California at 

4751 Wilshire Boulevard, 3'" Floor, Los Angeles, California, 

9 0 0 1 0 .  

5. Defendant Joseph R.  ranc cis ("Francis") is the sole 

shareholder, officer and director nf Defendant Mantra Films. 

Individually or in concert with others, he directs, controls, 

formulates and/or participates in the acts and practices set 

forth herein. Francis transacts or has trans3cted business in 

this district. 

COMMERCE 

6 At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants' 

course of business, including the acts ar-d gractices alleged 

herein, has been and is in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" 

is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 7j.s.c. $j 4 4 .  

COURSE O F  CONDUCT 

7. Since early 1999, and continuing t h e r ? a f t e r ,  Defer,dants 

Mantra and Fzancis (hereinafter col1ect:vely referred to 2 s  

Defendants) have produced, a6vertised, offered for sale, and sold 

tapes and DVDs (hereinafrer collecti~sely referred t3 a.c v l d e ~ s )  

under the name "Girls Gone Wild" and additional titles. 

8. Defendants have marketed videos nztionwide thro;lgh 

program length television commercials ("infomercials"j, shor: 
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:elevision commercials ("short-spots"), Internet advertising and 

inbound tele~~arketing calls. 

9 .  Defendants have disseminated or caused to be 

jisseminated 120-second and 60-second short spots. The short 

spots each focus on one of the titles and provlde censored inages 

JC the video content. They are aired frequently on national 

 able networks such as ESPN and the 2!  network. The 60-second 

zhort spots have ranked in the top 20 of commercials on national 

=able  networks during numerous time periods, such as M s y  2001 ts 

June 2001, and October 2001 to November 2001. 

10. Since December 2000, in connection w i t h  the sale of 

videos, Defendants have operated continuity programs. Under 

these programs, Defendants shlp addltlonal vldeos on a rnmLhly 

basis, for up t o  12 months, and charge the cost of the addltlonal 

videos, $24.98 each (SL9 .99  plus $ 4 . 3 9  shlpplng and handling) to 

the crealt card o r  other account number the consumer prcvlded to 

purchase the advertlsea video.  

11. In conjunction with the spor advertising of a speclflc 

vldeo ,  while censored irna5es from the vldeos are shown, the 

announcer explains that "the prlce of the vldeo 1s $9.99. U s 5  

your credit card, w e ' l l  also serd you [a bor,us tltle] abso lu t r - ly  

free." In the 60-second ad for one of t h e  titles the  announcer 

states "[tlhen preview other all new Girls Gone Wild t:tles, 

zat;sfactlon guaranteed, cancel anytlae." In the 120-second spot 

for another title, the announcer states "[tlhen prevlew cther 

uncensored Glrls Gone Wild citles, satlsfactlon guaranteed, 

cancel anytime." In the 60 axd 120-second spots f o r  a third 

n d e o ,  ths announcer says " [t] hen be the first to pre711eTn. the 

4 
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latest Girls Gone W i l c  videos, satisfaction guaranteed, cancel 

anytime . " 

12. Near the end of the 120-second and 60-second short 

sp~ts, text flashes onto the screen fer a few seconds, In small 

white print, s~per-imposed over censored images of the video 

content that states "(future titles $19.99 + s+h)," and "~zarcel 

snytme)." The short spots conclude with a screen that provldes 

advertised in the commercial. 

13. Defendants also have disseminated or caused to be 

dlsseminated 30-minute l~fomercials. As in the short spots, In 

the 30-minute infomercials, text flashes f o r  a few seconds, in 

small white print, super-imposed over censored images of the 

video content "(future tltles $19.99 + s + h )  ," and "(cancel 

anytirns)" A toll-free number is provided that the consumer can 

call to order the advertised title. 

14. When the consumer calls the toll-free numbers 

advertised in the short spots and the infomercials, Defendznts' 

telemarketing scripts first direct the sales representati-~es to 

ask the consumer to provide a shipping address and credit card or 

other account number to receive and pay for the adwrtiscd vide3. 

15. Next, the telemarketing scripts direct the sales 

representatlves to offer a series of addjtional products. First, 

the representatives offer two additional titles for $9.99 each. 

If the consumer consents, s/he is asked t o  upgrade to rush 

dellvery for an additional charge. Next, the representatlves 

offer a collector's set of flve videos for $ 4 9 . 9 3 .  Finally, the 

scripts 6irect the sales represectatives to conclude c a l l s  by 
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stating that the consumer's order will arrive in 10 to 14 

buslness days. The representatlves then announce that once a 

m~nth the consumer will receive an "all new, never before seen 

'Girls Gone Wild' video to preview for 10 days. You may cancel 

at any time, your satisfaction is guaranteed, and keep only the 

ones you want. Thank you for calling Girls Gone Wlld." 

16. If a consumer asks a question about the additional 

vldeo shipments, the telemarketing scripts direct the sales 

representatlves to tell the consumer that: 

This is ?art of our special TV offer. There 1s no 

ongolng comrnltment, and you don't have to buy anything 

further. If you would like to cancel, feel free to 

call after you receive your order. (emphauis added) 

17. Defendants accept as payment credit czrds, debit cards, 

checks, and money orders. 

18. Defendants do not tell consumers who order a video and 

pay by credit card or debit card that thsy are being enrolled in 

a continuity prograrr. and must call to cancel before .the nex: 

month's shipment - presumably within 30 days although the 

deadline for cancellatior is never disclosed - to avoid 

additional shipments and charges. Defendants also do not tell 

consumers the cost of the additional shipments, including whether 

consumers m u s t  pay for shipping and handling - although the 

initlal video costs $9.99 plus shipping and handling, videos sent 

as p a n  of a continuity program cost $19.99 plus shipping a ~ d  

handling and are charged to consumers' credit cr d e b i t  cards on 

or about the date of the shipment. 



19. The representatives do not ask for the consumer's 

consent for enrollment in a continuity program or authorlzatlon 

to charge the additional shipments to the debit or credit card 

account the consumer provided to pay for the advertised video. 

20. Defendants do not obtain written authorization Z r o m  

consumers who order a video and pay by debit card for recurring 

transfers from the consumers' accounts. 

21. Mantra also advertises its videos on the compazy's 

website, www.qirls~onew~ld.com. This website eontains sAnapshots 

from the videos and links to ordering pages. A consumer can 

order the videos directly from the website by clicking on links 

only $ 9 . 9 9  (Limited-time offer) . "  

22. The "Special TV Offer" link takes the consumer to a 

page contain-ng a brief description of the videos offered for 

$9.99. That page has a link that reads "Order Now!" Below the 

"Order Now!" link, aL the bottom of the page, there is a box of 

text that vaguely refers to a continuity prcgram, through the 

following statemenrs: 

Monthly Preview Program. 30-day money back guarantee if not 

completely satisfied. Additicnal t i t l e s  $19.99 + $4.99 

shipping and handling. Cancel Anytime. 

23. There is no explanation that the "Monthly Preview 

Program" is a continuity program and that, by ordering the v:d@os 

pictured, the consumer will receive addit~onal titles each month 

that will be charged automatically to the consumer's credic or 

debit card. 
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24. Each "Order Mow" link takes rhe consumer to a page that 

lists video titles and other merchandise, such as t-shirts and 

caps,  that the consumer can order. The two "Special TV Offer" 

videos are listed first, followed by numerous other titles and 

products. The company address and a toll-free telephone number 

to order videos are listed at the top of this page along with a 

customer service telephone number. 

25. When the consumer has chosen merchandise he wishes to 

order by clicking on an "Add to Cart" button, the site takes the 

consumer to a "shopping cart" page, from which the consumer must 

ciick on a "Checkout" button that takes him to an order form 

seeking billing and sh ippmg  information. At the cop of this web 

page to the right there are two check-boxes. One is entitled 

"Same as Billing" and is pre-selected. The other check-box is 

entitled "Agree to TermsN -and is also pre-selected.. No terms or 

conditions of continuity prcgram membership are dlsclcsed on this 

?age. 

26. The word "Terms" in this check-box's title is a link. 

Clicking on the word "Terms" takes the consumer to a "Terms and 

Conditions" gop-up page that cannot be maximized to fill che 

screen. This page contains the terms and conditions "which apply 

c o  the use by you of the Mantra S i t e s  ( a s  defined b e l o w j  and any 

other subscription product or s e r ~ i c e  offered for sale by Mantra 

Films, Inc. ' s  ar*d/or its a£ filiates." 

2 7 .  When the "Terms acd Conditions" page appears on t he  

screen, thers is a scroll bar along the right side. Only a very 

limited number sf terns can appear at one time in the pop-up page 

and -the consumer must s c r o l l  down to see the rest. T ~ E  co;lscmer 
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Initially cnly sees the first two terms on the first screen, and 

none of them disclose terms specifically related to a contixuity 

pragram. Term #1 is entitled "Definitions' and is one paragraph 

long. Term #2 is entitled "General" and is also orie paragraph 

long. If the consumer continues to scroll down, additional zerma 

appear. Term #3 is entitled, "Use of Mantra Sites;* Term # 4 ,  

"Disclaimer of Warranty; Limitation of Liability;" Term #5, 

"Indemnification;" Term # 6 ,  "Termination;" and Term #7, 

"Trademarks." These sections do not disclose inforrr,ation 

specifically related to a continuity program. 

28. Approximately three-quarters down the pop-up page, T e r n  

$3 appears, entitled "Products; Subscription-" Sub-paragraph A 

of this term states "certain products offered by M s n t r a  consist 

of a subscription. The following terrrs and conditions shall 

apply in the event that you order any product that is part of a 

subscription offered by Mantra on the Mantra Sites." This 

pro~rision, however, does not specify what items on the websice 

will "consist of a subscription." Further, the word 

"subscription" is only ~ s e d  in the "Terms and Conditions" pase. 

29. Because the "Agree to Terns" check-box is preselected, 

che website does not confirm in any way that the consumer has 

read the terms and conditions. Moreover, it does not even 

confirm that the consumer has seen the "Tens1' link. In 

addition, the websire does not seek the consumer's authorization 

to be enrolled in a continuity prograr,  in any other manner. 

30. Defer-dants represent in the commercials, on the 

website, and during the telemarketing calls thst consumers can 

cancel at arrj time. To avoid receiving a second shipment, 

9 
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consumers need to caRcel before that shipment is s e n t ,  presumably 

within a month a f t e r  the initial shipment. Xowever, Defendants' 

telemarketing scripts and shipments do not  tell consumers how 

they may cancel and defendants do not provide an effective means 

to cancel. Defendants' telemarketing sales representatives 

cannot even provide a customer service number tc ccnsumErs to 

contact the company. 

31. The initial and subsequent shipments Defendants send to 

consumers do not include any materials t h a t  explain the terms and 

conditions of the continuity program or how to cancel. The 

shipments do not contain any documents. The shipping label on 

the outside of t h e  shipment inc1u&s a return aSdreps, n F.O. BOX 

in Sylmark, rA, and states "Customer Serrice msa~~ideo. corn. " The 

vi2eo jacket and t h e  videotape label state "Visit our website at: 

w~\~.qirlsq~net~ild.c~rn" and the videotape label also includes 3 

P.O. 30x address in Hollywood, CA. Consumers can locate a 

customer service telephone nunber (to cancel further shipments) 

only if they go to one of the company's websites. 

32. The mravideo.com website lists a customer service 

telephone number, provides the P . O .  Box address in Yollywood, Ui, 

and includes a link to the company's www.oirls~onew;ld.con 

website. Written cancellation instructions appear on this 

website. These instructions zan be found by clicking on the 

"Questions" link on the homepage and then on the "Video & Dv13 

Crder FAG" link. There, consumers are told t ka t  they czn call or 

write to the customer service department to cancel further 

shipments. Defendants provide a customer service telephone 

number and the P.O. Box address in Hollymod,  CA. A telephone 
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call placed by Plaintiff to Defendantsr customer service number 

revealed, however, t h a t  videos mLst be returned to the address in 

Sylmark, CA, not Hollywood, CA. 

33. In numero-JS instances, consumers who c a l l e d  a customer 

service phone number to cancel further shipments or request a 

refund either could not reach an operator; the number was busy, 

appearing to be disconnected; or consumers were left w a i t m g  on 

hold for unreasonably long periods of time. Furthermore, some 

consumers who were able to speak with a customer sexvice 

representative were denied a refund or cancellation of their 

memberships. Other consumers who requested a refund were t o l d  

was on the way and then never received the refund. Numerous 

consumers who tried t o  conract the company by letter through 

electronic or US mail did not receive replies. C o n s u m u s  have 

returned videos to the company, but have failed to receive 

refunds. 

3 4 .  On February 8, 2002, the Commission served on 

Defendants a copy of the Unorcered Merchandise Statute, the 

Synopsis of Federal Trade Commission Decisions Concerning 

Unordered Merchax&ise, and copies of such decisions, along with 

Civil Investigative Demands for Documentary Materials and Written 

Interrogatories (CIDs) . The Commission determined in those 

decisions that shipping unordered merchandise and sending 

communications that seek to obtain payment for or return of 

merchandise shipped without the expressed consent of the 

recipient are unfair and deceptive acts or gractices and are 

unlawful. Defendants therefore had actual knowledge that such 

acts or practices are unfair and deceptive and are unlawful. 

11 
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Defendants continued to ship unordered merchandise to consumers 

and continued to send communications that seek to obtain payment 

for it after February 2002. 

THE FTC ACT 

35. Section 6 )  (a) (1) of the FTC Act, i5 U.S.C. 5 45 (a) (1) , 

provides that "unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or 

affecting commerce, are hereby declared unlawful." 

THE ELECTRONIC FUND TILANSFER ACT AND REGULATION E 

36. Section 9 0 7 i a j  of the EFTA, 15 U.S.C. S 1G33e(a), 

provides that a "preauthorized electronic fund transfer from a 

consumer's account may be authorized by the consumer only in 

writing, and a copy of such authorization shall be provided to 

the consumer when made." 

37. Section 205.10 (b) a£ Regulation E, 12 C.F-3.. 

S 205.lc(b), provides that "[plreauthorized electronic fund 

transfers from a consumer's account may be authorized only by a 

writing signed or similarly authenticated by the consumer. Tne 

person that obtains the acthorization shall p r o ~ r i d e  3 copy to the 

consumer." 

38. Section 205.10(bj of the Federal Reserve Board's 

Official Staff Commentary to Resulation E, 12 C . F . R .  E 205.10 (b), 

Supp. I, pro- ides that: 

The requirement that preauthorlzed EFTS be authorized 

by the consumer "only by a writing" cannot be met by 2 

payee's signing a written 3uthorization on the 

consumer's behalf with only an oral authorlzat:sn ftom 
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the consumer. A tape recording of a telephone 

conversation with a consumer who agrees to 

preauthorized debits also does not constitute written 

aurhorization for purposes of this provision. 

THE UNORDERED MERCHANDISE STATUTE 

39. The Unordered Merchandise Statute, 39 U . S . C .  5 3 0 0 9  

( 1 9 7 0 ) ,  prohibits shipping unordered merchandise, unless such 

merchandise is clearly and convpicuously marked as a free sample, 

or is merchandise r ,a i led by a charitable organization soliciting 

contributions. The statute also prohibits billing and sending 

dunning communications t o  recipients of unordered merchandise- 

4 0 .  Pursuant to Section (a) of the Unordered Merchandise 

S t a t u t e ,  3 9  U . S . C .  5 3 3 0 9 ( 2 ) ,  violations of the Unordered 

Merchandise Statute are an unfair mezhod of competition and an 

unfair trade practice in violation of Section 5 ( a )  (1) of the F T  

ACE, 1 5  U. S .  C. § 45 (a) (1) . 

PRIOR COMMISSION DETERMINATIONS CONCERNING 

UNFAIR AND DECEPTIVE ACTS OR PrnCTICES IN COMMERCE 

41. In a proceeding under Section 5 ( b j  of the ?TC Act, 15 

U.S.C. S 45(b), concerning Sunshine Art Studios, Inc., FTC Docket 

No. 8825, 61 F.T.C. 8 3 6  (1972)) aff'd, 431 F.2d 1171 (le' C i r .  

19-73}, the Commission OK November 30, 1972, determined that, in 

connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sale cr 

distribution of any product in commerce, as "commerce" is defined 

in the FTC Act, certain acts or practices are uxfair 2nd 

deceptive and unlawful under Section 5 ( a )  (1) of tho FTC Act, 15 

U . S .  C .  § 45 (a) (1) , and ir- that proceeding or! that date w i t h  

respect  t o  such acts or practices the Commi~slon issued an 
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Opinion and Final Order to cease acd desist ("the Commission'e 

Opinion and Pinal Order"). 

42. In Sunshine Art Studios, Inc. the Sonmission determined 

'chat : 

i. IL is an unfair and deceptive act or practice to send 

any merchandise by any means without the expressed 

request or consent of the recipient unless such 

merchandise has attached to it a clear and conspieuo~~s 

statement that rhe recipient may treat the merchandise 

as a gift and has the right to retain, use, discard, or 

dispose of it in any manner that the recipient sees f i t  

w i t h c - ~ t  any cbligation whatsoever to the sender; 

ii. It is an unfair and deceptive act or practice zo send 

any communication that in any rn~rmer seeks zo obtain 

payment for or return of merchandise shipped without 

the expressed consent of the recipient. 

43. On February 8, 2002, the Commission served on 

Defendants a copy of the  Unordered Merchandise Statute, the 

Synopsis of Federal Trade Commission Decisions Concerning 

Unordered Merchandise, and copies of such decisions, along with 

CIDs. A copy of the Synopsis is attached as Exhibit A. 

44. The Synopsis informed the Defendants cf the 

Commission's proceeGing described in paragraphs 41 and 42; ard  

included a copy of the Administrative Law Judge's Initial 

Decision and the Commission's Opinioc and Final Order  5. 3ocket 

No. 8 8 2 5 .  

45. In response to the February 2002 CIDs, the Defendants 

stated that the "Company's sole shareholder, director and a f f i c e r  
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has read and is  f ami l l a r  w i t h  the Statute and decision 

accompanying this CID, as are t h e  supervising employees of the 

Company. " 

F T C  ACT VIOLATIONS 

COUNT I 

46. In numerous instances since December 2000, in 

connection with the s a l e ,  o f f e r i n g  f o r  sale, o r  d i s t r l b u t m n  of 

mdeos, Defendacts have represented, expressly or b.1 i rnp l l ca t~on ,  

t h a t  consumers may o r d e r  a single video for $9.99 and wlll 

receive an additional title free as a bonus. 

47. Defendants have f a i l e d  to drsclose o r  to disclose 

adequately to consumers: (a) t ha t  the purchz~se  of a v ideo  

results in enrollment in a continuity program; and (b) the 

material 

ii. 

111 

4 8 .  

terms and conditio~s of that program, including: 

that consumers who order a video are enrolled In a 

contmuity proqrarn and must call tc cancel before the 

next monthly shipment to avoid additional shipments and 

charges ; 

 he cost of the additional shlpmentc, i n c l u d i n g  whether 

consumers must pay for shipping and handling;  

how consumers may cancel to avoid f u r t h e r  shlprnsncs and 

charges. 

A s  a r e s ~ l t  of the representation set f o r t h  In 

paragraph 46, Defendants' f a i l u r e  to disclose o r  t o  d i s c l a s e  

adequately the material information set forth in parzgraph 47 is 

a deceptive act or practice in -~iolation of Section 5 : a j  of t h e  

FTC Act, 15 U . S . C .  § 4 5 ( a ) .  

/ /  
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COUNT I1 

49. In numerous instances since December 2000, in 

connection with the sale, offering for sale, or distribution of 

videos, Defendants have caused charges to be submitted for 

payment for subsequent video shipments without the express 

informed consent of the consumer. 

50. Defendants' practices of causing charges to be 

submitted for payment for subsequent video shipments without the 

consumer's express informed consect causes or is likely to cause 

substantial injury co  consuners that is not reasonably avoidable 

by consumers themselves and is not outweighed by countervailing 

benefits to consumers or competition. 

51. Therefore Defendants' praceices as alleged in paragraph 

49, are unfair in violation of Section 5 ( a )  of the FTC A c t ,  15 

U.S.C. 45 ( E )  . 

COUNT 111 

52. In numerous instances since December 2000, in 

connection wlth the sale, offering for sale, oz distribution af 

videos, Defendants have represented, expressly or by implication, 

that consumers who purchase a video ean cancel their continuity 

program mmbership at anytl, we. 

5 7 -  In truth and In fact, consumers who purchase a video 

cannot cancel their continuity program membership at anytime. 

54. Therefore, the representation set f o r t h  i n  paragraph  5 2  

constitutes 2 deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 

5 (a )  of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45 ( a )  . 
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ELECTRONIC FUND TRANSFER ACT AND REGULATION E VIOLATIONS 

COUNT IV 

55. In numerous instances since Decerrber 2000, in 

connectlon wlth the sale, offering for sale, or distribution of 

videos, Dezendants have debited consumers' accounts on a 

recurring basis without obtaining consumers' written 

authorization for preauthorized electronic fund transfers from 

the accounts, thereby violating Section 907(a) of the EFTA, 15 

U . S . C .  § 1 6 9 3 e i a ) ,  Section 205.10(b) of Regulation 5, 12 C.F.R. 

205.10(b), and Section 205.10(5) of the Federal Reserve Eoard's 

Official Staff Commentary to Regulation E, 12 C.F.R. § 205.10(b), 

Supp. I. 

56. Pursuant to the EFTA, 15 U.S.C. 5i 1693o(c), e7rery 

violation of the EFTA and Regulation E constitutes a ~riolation of 

the FTC Act. 

57. By engaging in -riolations of the EFTA and Regulation E 

as alleged In paragraph 55 above, Defendants have engaged in 

violations of the FTC Act. 

UNORDERED MERCHANDISE STATUTE VIOLATION 

COUNT v 

58. En numerous instances since December 2000, in 

connection with the sale, offering for sale, or distribution of 

videos, Defendants, who are not a charitable organization 

soliciting contributims, have mailed packages of videos tc 

consumers without the pricr express request or consent of the 

recipients, or without identifying the packages as free samples, 

thereby violating Section (a) of the Unordered Merchandise 

Statute, 39 U.S.C. § 3003(a). 
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VIOLATION OF PREVIOUS COMMISSION DETERMINATIONS 

CONCERNING UNFAIR AND DECEPTIVE ACTS OR PRACTICES IN COMMERCE 

COUNT VI 

59. In numerous instances since on or about February 8, 

2002, in the course of conduct of their business, Defendants have 

as described above: 

i .  Mailed or caused to be mailed packages of videos to 

consumers without the prior expressed request or 

consent of the recipients, or w i t h o u t  attaching to the 

videos a clear and conspicuous statement that the 

recipients may treat the videos as a gift anr5 have the 

right tc retain, use, discard, or dispose of rhem in 

any manner the recipients see fit without any 

obligation to the Defendants; end 

ii. Sent communicatio~s that seek to obtain pa~ynent tor cr 

return of merc?xmdise shipped without the expressed 

consent of the recipients. 

60. Defexdants have engaged in the acts and practices 

described in paragraph 5 9  above with actual knowledge that such 

practices have been determined by the Commission to be m f a i r  and 

deceptive and are unlawful under Section ';(a) (1) of the FTC Act, 

15 U. S . C .  5 45 (a) (1) , as set forth in Section ";m) (1) ((E) of the 

FTC Act, 15 U. S . C .  § 4 5  irn) (1) (B) . Defendants, therefore, have 

violated Section 5 (m) (1) ( B )  of the FTC Act. 

CONSUMER INJURY 

61. Numerous consumers throughout the United S t a t e s  have 

suffered and continue to suffer substantlal monetary loss as a 

result of Defendants' unlawful acts o r  practices. In addition, 

18 
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Defendants have been unjustly enriched as a result of thelr 

unlawful practices. Ahsent injunctiw relief by this Court, 

Defendants are likely to continue to injure cons.Jmers, reap 

unjust enrichment, and h a m  che public interest. 

THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

6 2 .  Section 1 3  (b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. f. 53 (b! , 

empowers this Court to grant injunctive and other ancillary 

relief, including rescission of contracts and restitution, other 

forms of redress, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten gains Lo 

prevent and remedy violations of any provision of law e~forced by 

the Commission. 

6 3 .  Section 5 (n) (1) ( B )  of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 

5 4 5  (m) (1) (B) , Section 4 of the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation 

Aajustmenc Act of 1990, 23 U.S.C. S 2451 note, as amended by t h e  

Eebt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, Pub-L. 104-134, and 

Federal Trade Commission Xule 1.98 (el, 1 6  C.F.R. S 1.98 (el, 61 

Fed.  R e g .  54548 ( O c t .  21, 1996), authorize the Court to award 

monetary civil penalties of not more than $11,000 for each 

violation of previous Commission determinations concerning unfair 

arid deceptive acts or practices in commerce, as d e x r i b e d  in 

paragraphs 41-45 and 59-00. 

64. Each shipment of unordered merchandise made by 

Defendants since February 8 ,  2002, constitutes a separate 

violation for which Plaintiff se ,sks  monetary civil penalties. 

PRAYER FOR INJUNCTIVE AND MONETARY RELIEF 

WHEREFOZ, Plaintiff pursuant to Section 5 (m) (1) (E) and 

Section 1 3  (bj of the FTC Act, 15 U . S . C .  45 (m) (1, (Ex) and 53 (bj , 

and the Ccurt's own ecpitable powers, requosts tha; this Court: 

19 
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1. Permanently enjoin Defendants from violating Section 

;(a) of the FTC Act, the EFTA, Regulation E, the Federal Reserve 

3oard's Official Staff Commentary to Eegulation E, and t he  

Jnordered Merchandise S t a t u t e ;  

2. Award Plaintiff such preliminary. injunctive and 

m c i l l a r y  re l ie f  as may be 

necessary to avert the likelihood of consumer injury during the 

?endency of this action and to preserve the possibility of 

effective, final relief; 

3 .  Award such eqditable relief as the Court finds necessary 

to redress injury to consumers resulting from Defendants' 

violations of Section 5 ( a )  of che FTC Act, the EFTA, Regularion 

E l  the  Federa l  Reserve Board's Officisl Staff Commentzq to 

Regulation E, and the Unordered Merchandise Statute, including, 

but not limited to, r e s c i s s i o n  of contracts and restitution, 

other forms of redress, and the disgcrgement of ill-gotten g a l n s ;  

4 .  Award Plaintiff monetary civil penalties from Defendznts 

for each violation of Commission determinations concerning unfair 

paragraphs 4;-45 and 59-60 of this Complaint; and 



US ATTORNET'S OFFICE 

5 .  W;rd the Plaintiff the co3ts of bringing thls action, 

ind such equitable r e l l e f  as rhe Courr. may d a t r m i x e  to be j u s t  

2nd proper .  

3a tea :  December A, 2003 FETER D. KEISLZR 
Asslzcant A t c o r n e y  General 
Civil Divl f i ion  
EUGENE M ,  THTROLF 
Direccor 
O f f i c e  of Ccnscmer Litlgacicn 

-mL# >. 
MARii L. JOSE 
Trial Attorney 

Attorneys for Plainriff 
U n i ~ e d  States of America 

Of Counsel: 

ETLA1NE D. KGLISH 
Associa~e Director f o r  Enforcement 
Bureau  of Ccnsurner Protecrlon 
Federal T r a d e  ComrssioR 

JAMES RElLLY 3 0 W  
Assistant Dlrector for E n f o r c e ~ . ~ n t  
Bureau  of Coxumer  Protectio~ 
Federal Trsde Ccmmission 

EDWIIJ R O D F d G U S Z  
Wi! M. LLOYC 
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C i v i s i o n  of Enfsrcement 
Federa l  TrzCe Cornmlsslor. 
6 0 0  Penneylvanla Ave., NW 
Washington, DC 2 0 5 6 9  
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SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 
DECISIONS CONCERNING UNORDERED MERCHANDISE 

I . . 

. r 

The Federal Trade Commission has determined t h a t  the 
following acts or practices of sending and/or a t t e m p t i n g  to 
collect payment for unordered merchandise are u n f a i r  and 
deceptive and are unlawful under Sect ion 5 (a) (11 [15 U.S. C. 
S65  (a) (l)] of the Federal Trade Commission A c t  115 U . S . C .  
SS4l-S8] : 

It is an unfair and deceptive act o r  p rac t i ce  to: 

(1) send any merchandise by any m e a n s  w i t h o u t  
the p r i o r  expressed request or consent of 
t he  recipient unless such merchandise has 
attached to it a clear and conspicuous 
statement that t h e  r e c i p i e n t  may treat t h e  
merchandise as a gift and has the r i g h t  
to retain, use, discard, or dispose of it 
in any manner t h a t  the recipient sees f i t  
without  any obligation whatsoever to the 
sender; 1/ - 

-. - 
( 2 )  send any c m u n i c a t i o n  t h a t  in any manner 

seeks to obtain payment far or r e t u r n  of 
merchandise shipped without the pr io r  
expressed request or consent of t h e  
recipient.  2 /  - 

From the foregoing, i t  should be clear t h a t  it is 
unlawful to send any bill or dunning comunicat ion for  
unordered merchandise ( i - e . ,  merchandise sent without t h e  
p r i o r  expressed request or consent of the r e c i p i e n t ) .  Under 

1/ In the Matter of Sunshine Art Studios ,  Inc., e t  al., - 
Docket 8 8 2 5 ,  Initial Decision December 20, 1971, 81 

- 

F.T,C- 836, 853; 857-59, 865-71, 880. Affirmed bv t he  - - -  

C o m i s s i o n  at 082-84,  886-88,  ~ovember  30, 1972. A f f i r m e d  
by the United Sta tes  Court of Appeals,  F i r s t  Circuit, 
July 23, 1973, Sunshine ArY Studios, Inc., et al. v. F.T.C., 
481 F.Zd 1171, 1173-74. Golden ~ i f t y  pharmaceu t i ca l  Co., 
e t  al., Docket 8792, 77 F.T.C. 277, 280-81, 289-90 ( 1 9 7 0 ) + .  
-so Sect ion 3009 of the Postal Reorganization A c t  
Gc. s3009, copy attached). 

2 /  Ibid. - - 

*I 

EXHIBIT 
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1.; 

- ,  . 2 2  y Sec t ion  3009 o f  the 'postal Reorganization A c t ,  it is also 
unlawful even to send unordered merchandise .unless it 
consists of: (1) free samples clearly and conspicuously 
marked as such, or ( 2 )  merchandise sent by a charitable 
organization soliciting cont r ibu t ions .  In either case, the 
merchandise must have a t t a c h e d  to it a c lea r  and conspicuous 
statement that  the recipient may t r ea t  the merchandise as a 
gift and may retain, use, discard, or dispose of it in any 
.manner he or she sees f i t  w i t h o u t  m y  obligation.whatsoever 
to the sender. - 3/ 

-Section 3009 of the Postal Reorganization A c t  and t h e  
Synopsis of the Comn.ission's determinations ci ted above are 
stated in terms which are intended t o  cover the many and 
various methods and means which have been or might be employed 
to send or bill for unordered merchandise. To offer addi- 
tional guidance, the following are br ie f  synopses of merely  
some of the more specific acts and practices which the 
Commission has determined to be unlawful in connaction w i t h  
the sending and billing fo r  unordered merchandise. The list 
is not complete or all-inclusive but merely suggestive of 
some related practices that also have been determined to 
be unlawful. 

It is an unfair and deceptive act or practice to: 

(3) pad or "kiten [ e . g . ,  increase, expand, 
i n f l a t e ,  or raise without p r i o r  expressed 

, customer approval'] orders o r  prices- - 4/  

3/ See Postal Reorganization A c t ,  39 U . S - C .  S3009. Also, - - 
the Commission has issued two enforcement po l icy  statements 
to advise the legal and business communities that it c o n s i d e r s  
Section 3009 to be a proper in lz rp re ta t ion  of Section 5 of the 
Federal Trade Commission ~ c t  insofar  as the sending ar billing 
for unordered merchandise are concerned -- whether it is s e n t  
by U . S .  mail or by nonmail shipment. See 3 5  Federal Register  
14328 (Sept. 11, 1970) and 43 Federal G i s t e r  4113 (Jan. 31, 
1978). 

4 / -  - fn t h e  Matter of Sta r  Office Supply Company, et a l .  , - 
Docket 8 7 4 9 ,  I n i t i a l  ~ecision ~ p r i l  11, 1969, 77 F-T.C. 3 8 3 ,  
402-03. Affirmed by the Coxmission A p r i l  16, 1970, at 4 4 3 - 4 4 ,  
4468 4 4 7 ,  455. 
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6 ,. -. 
i."- 

. b 
( 4 )  send merchandise which d i l f z r s  w i t h  respect 

to brand name, type, quant i ty ,  size, or 
I' .- quality from that represented in induc ing  

orders or f r o m  t h a t  ordered by the purchaser; 5/ - 

(5) fail or refuse to accept bonn fide cancella- 
tions or t h w a r t  and prevent cancellations of 
all or part of orders by customers who assert 
bona f i d e  reasons therefor: i/ 

(6) represent, directly or indirectly; that a 
recipient of merchandise sen t  on "approval" 
(a) has a contract or agreement w i t h  the 
sender ,  or (b) must either pay for or r e t u r n  
t h e  merchandise: 

(i) unless the recipient has expressly 
requested or consented to receive 
such merchandise on approval, or 

(ii) if the rec ip ient  has specif ical ly 
requested the aender .not to sh ip  
the merchandise; 7/ - 

Ibid. - See also ibid a t  419. --- 
6 /  Ibid. See also In the Matter of Sunshine A r t  Studios, Inc., - -- 
et al., note 1 supra ,  81 F.T.C. 836, 8 3 7 ,  857, 880, 882-84,  8 8 7 ,  
m n  t h e  Matter of Golden F i f t y  Pharmaceutical Co. , et al. , 
note 1 supra at 280-81, 289-90- 

7/ In the Matter of Sunshine Art Studios,  Inc. ,  et al., note 1 - 
supra, 81 F.T.C. 8 3 6 ,  837 ,  851-53, 856-59, 865-71, 880,  882-84 .  
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(7) represent ,  d i rec t ly  or ind i rec t ly ,  that 
persops accepting a free offez- will be 
under no obligation when, in fact, those 
accepting the free offer are {or lrre later 
infanned t h a t  they are) obligated to 
a )  not i fy  the eender to cancel further 
shipments, or (b) purchase or r e t m  
additional shipment= of merchandise: a /  

represent, contrary to fact, t h a t  the 
shipper of unordered 'Jnerchandf se has 
a bona f i d e  order for it. 9 /  

8/ In t h e  Matter of Golden F i f t y  Pharmaceutical C o . ,  et al., - 
note l supra at 288-90. For additional guidance regarding use 
of t h e  word "FREEn see the Commission's Guide Concerning U s e  
of the  Word "FREE" similar Representations at ~ i t l e  16 of 
Code of Federal Regulations,  Pait 251. 

EXHIBIT .R 
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Pub-L. a-375,  Aug.. 13,1970. M 3t.t. 718, CPanul Rmrprafzrdoa Act.) 


